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April 2, 2024 Via Email Only

Permittees of the Upper Los Angeles River Watershed Group'

FINAL APPROVAL OF THE UPPER LOS ANGELES RIVER WATERSHED GROUP’S
WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (WMP) PURSUANT TO THE REGIONAL
MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4) WASTE DISCHARGE
REQUIREMENTS AND NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION
SYSTEM (NPDES) PERMIT FOR THE LOS ANGELES REGION (NPDES PERMIT
NO. CAS004004; ORDER NO. R4-2021-0105)

Dear Permittees of the Upper Los Angeles River Watershed Group:

The Regional MS4 Permit (Order No. R4-2021-0105) authorizes discharges from the
MS4 operated by 99 municipal Permittees within the coastal watersheds of Los Angeles
and Ventura Counties (hereafter, Regional MS4 Permit or Order). The Regional MS4
Permit allows Permittees the option to use a Watershed Management Program (WMP)
to implement many of the permit's requirements through customized strategies, control
measures, and best management practices (BMPs).

1) Approval of the Watershed Management Program

The Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (Los Angeles Water Board or
Board), approved with conditions, the Upper Los Angeles River Watershed
Management Group’s (Group) WMP on May 1, 2023. The conditional approval letter
directed the Group to submit a final WMP that satisfies all the conditions listed in the
letter no later than August 1, 2023. The Group submitted a revised WMP on August 1,
2023. On September 15, 2023, November 8, 2023, November 15, 2023, and December
12, 2023, the Board responded with emails to the Group directing them to revise the
WMP to address the conditions that were not fully satisfied per the conditional approval
letter. After multiple revisions to the WMP, the Group submitted their final WMP on
December 19, 2023.

After reviewing the Group’s final WMP, the Board has determined that the Group’s
WMP, submitted on December 19, 2023, is consistent with the requirements of the
Regional MS4 Permit. The Los Angeles Water Board hereby approves the Group’s

" Permittees of the Upper Los Angeles River Watershed Group include the cities of Los Angeles,
Alhambra, Burbank, Calabasas, Glendale, Hidden Hills, La Cafiada Flintridge, Montebello, Monterey
Park, Pasadena, Rosemead, San Fernando, San Gabriel, San Marino, South El Monte, South Pasadena,
and Temple City and the County of Los Angeles (Unincorporated County) and the Los Angeles County
Flood Control District (LACFCD).
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WMP, submitted on December 19, 2023. Pursuant to Parts IX.C.1 and IX.G.3.c of the
Order, the Group shall implement their approved WMP immediately. The Group is
subject to all applicable compliance schedules in Part IV.B and Attachments K through
S of the Order.

2) Compliance Determinations
2.1 Compliance Determination for WBPCs other than Trash

2.1.1 Compliance Metric: Pursuant to Part IX.B.7.h of the Order, the WMP is required
to specify the expected volume capture, load reductions, or other compliance metric(s)
at regular milestones, and the methods by which these reductions will be measured and
demonstrated for each waterbody pollutant combination (WBPC) and supported via the
RAA. Based on the information provided in the WMP, submitted on December 19, 2023,
the Los Angeles Water Board will determine deemed compliance with the Group’s WMP
based on the following compliance metric(s) per the approved compliance schedule:

+ Figures 7-6 through 7-30 of the WMP: cumulative BMP capacity for each interim
milestone for each Permittee’s waterbody(ies) within their jurisdictional area

If the Group fails to attain the volume reduction milestones in these figures, then the
Group shall lose deemed compliance status for their interim WQBELs. The Group must
then demonstrate compliance with final WQBELs through the direct demonstration of
compliance options outlined in Part X.B.2.a of the Order or demonstrate that structural
BMPs retain all non-stormwater runoff and the volume of stormwater runoff generated
from the 85" percentile 24-hour storm event for the watershed area.

2.1.2 WBPCs Eligible for Deemed Compliance Through Alternative Demonstration
of Compliance: The following WBPCs will receive deemed compliance through the
WMP if the actions and schedules specified in the WMP are attained as outlined in
Parts X.B.1.b and X.B.2.b of the Order:

+ Table 3-5: Category 1A,1B, and 1D WBPCs for cadmium, copper, lead, and zinc
+ Tables 3-5, 3-6, and 3-7: Category 1B WBPCs for E.coli during wet weather for
all reaches and tributaries of LAR watershed, and during dry weather for
Segment A Tributary (Compton Creek), Segment C (lower Reach 4 and Reach 3
- Tujunga Avenue to Figueroa Street), Segment C Tributaries (Tujunga Wash,
Burbank Western Channel, and Verdugo Wash), Segment D (Reach 5 and upper
Reach 4 — Balboa Boulevard to Tujunga Avenue), Segment D Tributaries (Bull
Creek), Segment E (Reach 6 — LA River headwaters [confluence with Bell Creek
and Calabasas Creek] to Balboa Boulevard), and Segment E Tributaries (Dry
Canyon Creek, McCoy Creek, Bell Creek, and Aliso Canyon Wash)

Table 3-5: Category 2 and 3 WBPCs

Table 3-6: Category 1A and 1B for lead

Table 3-6: Category 1D WBPCs for cadmium, copper, lead, and zinc

Table 3-6: Category 2 and 3 WBPCs
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« Table 3-7: Category 1D WBPCs for cadmium, copper, lead, and zinc

« Table 3-7: Category 2 and 3 WBPCs

» Table 3-8: Category 1C WBPCs for total phosphorus, total nitrogen, ammonia,
dissolved oxygen, pH, and chlorophyll-a for Legg Lake and Lake Calabasas

» Table 3-8: Category 1C WBPC for Odor for Legg Lake

« Table 3-8: Category 1C WBPCs for PCBs, chlordane, and dieldrin for Echo Park
Lake

+ Table 3-8: Category 1C WBPCs for PCBs, chlordane, dieldrin for Echo Park Lake

» Table 3-8: Category 2 WBPCs for DDT and PCBs for Legg Lake

« Table 3-9: Category 1 WBPCs for Indicator Organisms for San Gabriel River
Reach 3 for the City of South EI Monte

Any WBPCs that are not listed above are not eligible for deemed compliance for one or
more of the following reasons: (a) for Category 1 WBPCs with interim deadlines, the
WMP proposes watershed control measures for which there are no quantitative
analyses that satisfy the RAA requirements, (b) the final TMDL deadline(s) have passed
and there is no approved Time Schedule Order (TSO) or retention of all non-stormwater
runoff and the volume of stormwater runoff from the 85th percentile 24-hour storm
event, (c) the WMP only proposes the implementation of baseline Permit requirements,
and/or (d) the WMP does not propose implementing additional structural BMPs and
proposes to demonstrate compliance though monitoring.

2.2 Compliance Determination for Trash WBPCs

Trash WBPCs are not eligible for deemed compliance under the WMP. For Trash
WBPCs, compliance shall be determined as outlined in Part X.C of the Order.

3) Other Requirements

Adaptive Management: Pursuant to Part IX.E.1 of the Order, the Permittee(s) shall
implement an adaptive management process for each approved WMP. An adaptive
management process is a periodic, comprehensive program evaluation, including re-
analysis of data and/or modeling, and a modification process to determine progress
toward achieving WQBELs and receiving water limitations and to adapt the Watershed
Management Program to become more effective at achieving WQBELs and receiving
water limitations. Pursuant to Part IX.E.4 of the Order, Permittee(s) shall submit the
results of the adaptive management process with the Permittees’ Report of Waste
Discharge (ROWD) to the Los Angeles Water Board no later than March 15, 2026.

Per Part IX.E.3 of the Order, the adaptive management process fulfills the requirements
in Part V.D of the Order to address continuing exceedances of receiving water
limitations.

Modifications: The Group may propose WMP modifications at any time during the term
of the Order, as necessary. The Group shall provide a standalone written request
explaining the nature of the proposed modification(s) and justification for consideration
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by the Los Angeles Water Board. Such justification may include the need to align the
timing of implementation for a specific project with a project partner that is not regulated
by the Regional MS4 Permit.

If you have any questions about this letter, please contact Angineh Shahnazarian with
the Municipal Stormwater Permitting Unit by email at
Angineh.Shahnazarian@waterboards.ca.gov or by phone at (213) 576-6635.
Alternatively, you may also contact Ivar Ridgeway, Municipal Stormwater Permitting
Unit Supervisor by email at lvar.Ridgeway@waterboards.ca.gov or by phone at (213)
620-2150.

Sincerely,
Jenny Bigitally signed by Jenny
ewman
Date: 2024.04.02
N ewman Og:fS:SO -07'00'

for Susana Arredondo
Executive Officer

cc:  David Dolphin, City of Alhambra
Stephen Walker, City of Burbank
Tatiana Holden, City of Calabasas
Yazdan Emrani, City of Glendale
Kerry Kalman, City of Hidden Hills
Patrick DeChellis, City of La Canada Flintridge
Alfredo Magallanes, City of Los Angeles
Barbara Romero, City of Los Angeles
Julie Allen, City of Los Angeles
Jonathan Ball, City of Los Angeles
James Enriquez, City of Montebello
Bonnie Tam, City of Monterey Park
Kris Markarian, City of Pasadena
Noya Wang, City of Rosemead
Matt Baumgardner, City of San Fernando
Greg de Vinck, City of San Gabriel
Amber Shah, City of San Marino
Colby Cataldi, City of South ElI Monte
Harold Theodore Gerber, City of South Pasadena
Scott Reimers, City of Temple City
Fernando Villaluna, Los Angeles County
Mark Lombos, Los Angeles County Flood Control District
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